
the consent of the Israeli people. The United 
States amendments, which explicitly stated that 
they took into account the Mediator's report, 
revealed the same defects and raised the same 
danger of intervention in the internal affairs of the 
State of Israel which they were designed to avoid. 

The representative of Guatemala stated that the 
draft resolution submitted by Australia (A/C.l/ 
396) conformed to the principles of international 
law and that his delegation would vote in favour 
of it. However, in view of the fact that the 
United Kingdom proposal (A/C.l/394) had been 
sudmitted first, and that if it were adopted even 
by only a small majority the Australian proposal 
might possibly not be voted upon, the Guatemalan 
delegation submitted an amendment (AJC.l/398) 
to the United States amendment (AJC.lj397) to 
the United Kingdom proposal. This amendment 
also contained a paragraph taken from the 
Australian draft resolution concerning the 
admission of the State of Israel to the United 
Nations. 

Mr. Garcia Granados stated in conclusion that 
without foreign intervention the Jews and Arabs 
would have been able to settle their problems long 
ago and live in peace. They must be encouraged 
to do so, and it was to be hoped that in the future 
those two sister peoples would be able to co-oper­
ate for the maintenance of peace and the strength­
ening of the United Nations. 

Mr. ZuLOAGA (Venezuela) proposed that the 
meeting scheduled for that evening should be 
postponed until the following morning. 

The proposal was adopted by 20 votes to 5, with 
8 abstentions. 

The meeting rose at 6.05 p.m. 

TWO HUNDRED 
AND TWELFTH MEETING 

Held at the Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
on Thursday, 25 November 1948, at 10.30 a.m. 

Chairman : Mr. A CoSTA nu RELS (Bolivia). 

81. Continuation o~cussion on 
the progress report of the United 
Nations Mediator on Palestine 
(A/648) 

The CHAIRMAN read the list of speakers and 
declared that the general discussion would be 
closed after they had spoken and that the 
discussion would then proceed on the various 
draft resolutions and amendments. 

Mr. MuNIZ (Brazil) said that Palestine was 
of universal concern because it was the cradle 
of three great religions and was situated at 
the crossroads of the world where the political 
interests of the great Powers converged. The 
latter fact was sufficient in itself to create 
tension in Palestine and to this had been added in 
later years the conflict between two nationalisms. 
The United Nations had assumed a grave respons-

En effet, les amendements des Etats-Unis, qui 
tiennent compte explicitement du rapport du 
Mediateur, presentent les memes defauts et 
comportent les memes risques d'intervention 
dans les affaires interieures de l'Etat d'Israel 
qu'ils se proposaient d'eviter. 

Le representant du Guatemala constate que 
le pro jet de resolution presente par I' Australie 
(A/Cl/396) est conforme aux principes du droit 
international et declare que sa delegation votera 
en faveur de cette resolution. Toutefois, constatant 
que la proposition du Royaume-Uni (AJC.l/394) 
a ete presentee en premier lieu et que dans le 
cas ou elle serait adoptee, ne fut-ce que par 
une faible majorite, la proposition australienne 
courrait le risque de ne pas etre mise aux 
voix, la delegation du Guatemala presente 
un amendement (A/C.l/398) a I'amendement 
des Etats-Unis (AJC.l/397) ala proposition du 
Royaume-Uni. Cet amendement contient egale­
ment un paragraphe extrait du projet de reso­
lution de l'Australie tendant a !'admission de 
I'Etat d'Israel au sein de !'Organisation des 
Nations Unies. 

M. Garcia Granados conclut que, sans inter­
vention etrangere, les Juifs et les Arabes auraient 
pu depuis longtemps resoudre leurs problemes 
et vivre en paix. II fait les encourager dans cette 
voie, dans l' espoir que deux peuples freres 
pourront cooperer a l'avenir pour le maintien de 
la paix et pour le renforcement de !'Organisation 
des Nations Unies. 

M. ZULOAGA (Venezuela) propose de reporter 
la seance prevue pour le soir au lendemain matin. 

Celie proposition est adoptee par 20 voix contre 
5, avec 8 abstentions. 

La seance est levee a 18 h. 5. 

DEUX-CENT-DOUZIEME SEANCE 

Tenue au Palais de Chaillol, Paris 
le jeudi 25 novembre 1948, a 10 h. 30. 

President: M. A. CosTA. nu RELS ;(Bolivie). 

81. Suite de la discussion sur le rapport 
interimaire du Mediateur des Na­
tions Unies pourla Palestine (A/648) 

Le PRJ~SIDENT lit la liste des orateurs inscrits 
et declare que lorsqu'ils auront pris la parole, 
la discussion generale sera close. La discussion 
aura ensuite pour objet les divers projets de 
resolution et amendements. 

M. MuNIZ (Bresil) declare que le probleme de 
la Palestine preoccupe le monde entier, parce 
que ce pays est le berceau de trois grandes 
religions et se trouve a Ia croisee des chemins 
de l'univers, ou se confrontent les inten~ts 
politiques des grandes Puissances. Ce dernier fait 
aurait suffi pour creer de la tension en Palestine, 
mais, au cours des dernieres annees, i1 est venu 
s'y ajouter le conflit de deux nationalimes. 

753 
48 



ibility when it had been called upon to find 
a solution to this problem, but it had also 
been given a unique opportunity to show its 
capacity to do constructive work. The United 
Nations ofTered the best possibility for an 
enduring and adequate settlement which could 
come about only through an international organ­
ization capable of expressing ·worldauthority and 
exercising international control. 

l\Ir. l\Iuniz said that he would not review the 
various phases of the Palestine question but 
would take up the Progress Report of the l\Iediator. 
While certain of its recommendations might 
give rise to objections, this report gave the 
general outlines of the problem with great 
objectivity, revealing a well-developed political 
sense and generous devotion to the cause of 
international peace on the part of the Mediator. 
The l\Iediator had realized that this problem 
could not te solved on the basis of political consid­
erations only, but' by reconciling the ethnical, 
social and economic interests of the parties 
concerned ; that was the intention of his recom­
mendation for the establishment of a conciliation 
commission. Only by bringing the parties together 
through such a commission would they be able to 
reach agreement. However, such direct nego­
tiation might not be enough. Without the 
authority of the United Nations, exercising vigilant 
control, the chances of agreement between the 
reluctant parties became very small. In his view, 
if the Assembly adopted a formula bringing into 
play the three necessary elements of direct nego­
ciations, intervention of a conciliation body, and 
control hy the United Nations, all of which were 
recommended by the Mediator, it would be ulti­
mately successful although it might require 
persistent efTort lasting over a period of years. 

Another important condition for success was 
that the United Nations decision must carry 
the authority and prestige of morality and 
justice and must not be influenced by manif­
estations of military force. Although some 
indication of the boundary lines must be given, 
the resolution must leave sufficient latitude to 
the parties to find the best boundary by nego­
tiation, with the assistance of the proposed conci­
liation commission. The Arab refugees must be 
given every opportunity to start life again and to 
receive due compensation for their losses. 
Furthermore, the Brazilian delegation favoured the 
adoption of an international status for Jerusalem 
and an extension of international protection to all 
Holy Places. 

Peace was an indispensable condition for the 
success of the conciliation commission, and the 
success up to date of the Security Council in 
maintaining a truce must be consolidated and 
a broader peace established. Finally all efforts 
would fail if the parties did not show a sense 
of reality and a desire to settle their differences. 
They must realize that despite their differences 

L'Organisation des Nations Unies a assume une 
grave responsabilitc lorsqu'elle a ete chargee 
de trouver une solution a ce probleme, mais elle 
a ainsi une occasion unique de montrer qu'elle 
est capable de faire ceuvre constructive. L'inter­
vention de !'Organisation des Nations Unies 
offre le meilleur moyen de parvenir a un reglement 
durable et equitable, ce reglement ne pouvant 
etre realise que par l'intermediaire d'une orga­
nisation jouissant d'une autorite universelle 
et capable d'irnposer un controle international. 

M. Muniz ne reviendra pas sur Ies diverses 
phases par lesquelles a passe la question de la 
Palestine, ma.is il traitera du rapport interimaire 
du Mcdiateur. On peut clever des objections 
contre telle ou telle de ses recommandations, 
cependant ce rapport formule les donnees generales 
du problcme de Ia manicre Ia plus objective, 
tout en tcmoignant, de Ia part du Mediateur, 
d'un sens politique cleve et d'un devouement 
genereux a la cause de Ia paix internationale. 
Le Mediatcur s'est rendu compte que le probleme 
ne peut etre resolu en s'inspirant uniquement 
de considerations politiques, mais qu'il faut 
harmoniser des interets d'ordre ethnique, social 
et cconomique des parties, et c'est le sens qu'a 
sa recommandation en vue de l'etablissement 
d'une commission de conciliation. L'accord ne 
pourra Ctre realise que par un rapprochement 
des parties grace a !'assistance d'une telle commis­
sion, mais il se pourrait que des negociations 
directes ne suffisent pas. Si !'Organisation des 
Nations Unies n'exerce pas son autorite et son 
controle vigilant, il n'y a guere de chances de 
realiser un accord entre des parties peu disposees 
a s'entendre. De !'avis de M. Muniz, pour aboutir, 
en fin de compte, l'Assemblee devrait adopter 
une formule mettant en jeu trois elements 
indispensables recommandes par le Mediateur, 
a savoir des negociations directes, !'intervention 
d'un organisme de conciliation et le controle 
de !'Organisation des Nations Unies. II est bien 
possible cependant qu'il faille un effort persistant, 
poursuivi pendant des annees. 

Une autre condition essentielle du succes, 
c'est que Ia decision de !'Organisation des Nations 
Unies possede l'autorite que donnent Ia moralite 
et la justice et qu'elle ne soit pas prise sous 
!'influence de manifestations de la force militaire. 
Les futures frontieres doivent etre esquissees, 
mais Ia resolution doit laisser une latitude 
suffisante aux parties pour leur permettre de 
negocier le meilleur trace des frontiere~.. a.vec 
!'assistance de Ia commission de concrhatwn. 
Toutes les possibilites doivent etre ofT~rtes 
aux refugies arabes de recommencer leur vre et 
de recevoir un juste dedommagement pour leurs 
pertes. En outre, la delegation bresilienne se 
declare en faveur de !'adoption d'un sta~ut 
international pour Jerusalem et de l'exten~wn 
de la protection internationale a tous les Lreux 
Saints. 

La paix est une condition indispensable du 
succes de Ia commission de conciliation, et la 

. treve que le Conseil de securite a pu assur~r 
jusqu'a ce jour doit etre consolidee et transformee 
en une veritable paix. Enfin, tous les efforts 
seront vains, si les parties ne font pas preuve 
du sens des realites et du desir de regler leur 
litige. Elles doivent admettre que, malgre leur 

754 



they had many interests and traditions in 
common and that they could form a rich social 
pattern if they would lend themselves to that 
effort. 

Mr. TSARA:PKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) recalled that in his statement on 
22 November (206th meeting) he had suggested 
the withdrawal of all foreign troops and personnel 
from Palestine. In his opinion the presence 
of those troops, particularly at this moment 
when the United Nations was attempting to 
bring about peace, was a hindrance to peaceful 
adjustment of the situation and it was essential 
that they should be withdrawn. Their presence 
on the territories of the Arab and Jewish States 
created by the Assembly's resolution 181 (II) of 
19 November was illegal and unjustified and main­
tained a tense situation which might lead to 
further military action. 

Mr. Tsarapkin submitted a draft resolution 
for their withdrawal (A./C.1/401). 

Mr. FAw:ZJ (Egypt) said he would like to 
comment on a number of points which had arisen 
in the discussion since the previous statement 
by the Egyptian Foreign Minister. He did not 
intend to deal at length with those matters 
which had been thoroughly considered before, 
such as the Jewish contention that the lands 
of Palestine had been made ·fertile owing to 
Jewish enterprise. While he did not question 
Jewish efforts, he wished to point out that about 
90 per cent of this territory had been fertile and 
productive long before the Jews had acquired it. 

Moreover, the Jews had attempted to exonerate 
the Zionists from any responsibility for violence 
or atrocities .. What had been proved concerning 
Deir Yassin had not been refuted and there 
had been hundreds of similar cases. In this 
connexion he read from the letter dated 9 No­
vember 1948 from the Chairman of the Truce 
Commission to the President of the Security 
Council concerning the systematic demolition 
of Arab-owned real property in the Jewish­
occupied area of Jerusalem and stating that the 
Commission considered it equitable that the 
legitimate rights of the Arabs, in this case openly 
violated in defiance of the provisions of the 
truce, should be reserved by the competent 
orcrans of the United Nations. He asked that 
thls letter, together with the other correspondence 
on this subject reproduced in document S/1082, 
be considered as part of the record. 

Mr. Fawzi said that he could understand the 
7ionists' desire to retain the territory allotted 
to them by the Assembly's resolution 181 (II) of 
29 November 1947 including the Negeb, and at 
the same time to support the recommendation 
in the Mediator's progress report which would 
give them Western Galilee. He could not 
understand, however, the contention made by 
some representatives that the resolution of 
29 November was still valid when so many 
decisions of the Security Council and the General 
Assembly had virtually cancelled this resolution, 
particularly the Assembly's resolution (186/S-2) 

differends, elles ont de nombreux interets et de 
nombreuses traditions en commun, et que, si 
elles faisaient !'effort necessaire, elles pourraient 
reussir a former une societe pleine de promesses. 

M. TsARAPKINE (Union des Republiques socia­
listes sovietiques) rappelle que, dans sa declaration 
du 22 novembre (2066 seance), il avait suggere 
le retr;:~it de la Palestine de toutes les troupes 
et personnels etrangers. A son avis, la presence 
de ces troupes est un obstacle au reglement 
pacifique de la situation et il importe qu'elles 
soient retirees, plus particulierem~nt au moment 
present ou !'Organisation des Nations Unies 
s'efforce de realiser Ia paix. La presence de ces 
troupes sur Ies territoires des Etats arabe et juif, 
tels qu'ils ont et prevus par Ia resolution 181 (II) 
de I' Assemblee en date du 29 novembre, est 
illegale et injustifiee, et fait se prolonger une 
situation dangereuse qui pourrait entrainer de 
nouvelles operations militaires. 

M. Tsarapkine presente un projet de resolution 
dans ce sens (A/C.1/401). 

M. FAwZI (Egypte) presentera quelques obser­
vations sur un certain nombre de points qui ont 
surgi au cours de la discussion, depuis la derniere 
declaration du Ministre des Affaires etrangeres 
d'Egypte. Il n'a pas !'intention de s'etendre 
longuement sur des sujets deja examines a fond, 
comme !'assertion juive selon Jaquelle les terres 
de Palestine ont ete rendues fertiles grace aux 
efforts des Juifs. Sans mettre en doute les efforts 
des Juifs, M. Fawzi tient a souligner qu'environ 
90 pour 100 de ces terres etaient fertiles et 
productives avant leur acquisition pour les 
Juifs. 

Par ailleurs, les Juifs ont essaye de laver les 
sionistes de toute responsabilite pour les violences 
et les atrocites cornmises. Cependant, les preuves 
qui ont ete fournies au sujet de Deir Yassin 
n'ont pas ete refutees, et il y a des centaines 
de cas analogues. A ce propos, il donne lecture 
d'un extrait de la lettre adressee par le President 
de la Commission de treve au President du 
Conseil de securite, au sujet de la demolition 
systematique des immeubles arabes dans Ia 
partie de Jerusalem occupee par les J uifs, declarant 
que la Commission estime equitable que les 
droits Iegitimes des Arabes, violes ouvertement 
en depit des dispositions de la treve, soient 
reserves par les organes competents de !'Orga­
nisation des Nations Unies. M. Fawzi demande 
que, dans le compte rendu de la seance, il soit fait 
mention de cette lettre, de meme que des autres 
correspondances a ce sujet, consignees au docu­
ment S/1082. 

M. Fawzi comprend que les sionistes puissent 
desirer a la fois garder le territoire qui leur a ete 
attribue en vertu de la resolution 181 (II) de 
l'Assemblee du 29 novembre 1947, y compris le 
Negeb, et en meme temps appuyer la recom­
mandation figurant au rapport interimaire du 
Mediateur qui tend a leur accorder la Galilee 
occidentale. Par contre, l'orateur ne comprend 
pas pourquoi certains representants maintiennent 
que la resolution du 29 novembre demeure e!l 
vigueur, alors que tant de decisions du Conseil 
de securite et de l' Assemblee generale, intervenues 
depuis cette date, ont pratiquement annule 

755 



of 14 i\1ay 1948 which spoke of a new approach 
to solving the problem. 

He also asked with whom and about what 
the Arabs ,,·ere expected to undertake direct 
negotiations, when they did not recognize the 
Zionists as a party or a State and were opposed 
to partition. The Arab States were always 
ready to negotiate with the United Nations 
on the maintenance of peace, as was their duty, 
but there were not going to be any other nego­
tiations. This was not a question of obstinacy 
but of conviction, it was the principle on which 
the Arabs based their position. 

The Security Council had from the first based 
its actions on the sound principle that the 
fighting in Palestine should cease and that no 
party should he allowed to benefit from the 
cease-fire or through violations of it. But the 
Zionists had occupied the territory which they 
presently held since 15 l\Iay in violation of the 
Security Council's cease-fire orders and had thus 
gained both a political and military advantage. 
The Zionists knew that if they confronted the 
United Nations with a fait accompli, they could 
not be challenged. As an example, he cited the 
Security Council's resolution (S/1070) of 4 No­
vember 1948, and stated that the Zionists seemed 
to have accepted it but had given no proof of 
carrying it out. Egypt was not accusing the 
Security Council of bias, as had been said, but 
of something worse than bias, namely, of not 
carrying out its obligations under the Charter, 
because it was submitting to force. If the 
Council could not handle such a small military 
matter as the fighting in Palestine, what could 
it handle ? Until the Security Council could 
stop the fighting in Palestine and prevent the 
flouting of its orders, there could be no assurance 
of any solution for the Palestine problem or any 
other question . 

It had been argued that the Arabs should 
not worry about a Zionist danger to peace in 
the Middle East. However, it was not a matter_ 
of one or two million Jews in Palestine, as had 
been argued, but of the Zionist forces throughout 
the world which included millions of Jews and 
millions of others actively supporting them. 
He was surprised that any one should contend 
that Zionism was not a menace when hundreds of 
thousands of Arabs had been systematically 
deprived of their property, driven from their 
homes and made destitute. He acknowledged 
with gratitude that the United Nations was 
trying to give assistance to the refugees but 
without being ungrateful, it had to be noted that 
that assistance was limited. These people who 
were seeing their children die and who would 
suffer even more cruelly during the coming 
winter had the right to go back to their homes ; 
it was often painful to depend on charity. Zionist 
aggression was directed not only against the 
peoples of the Middle East, but against the 

cette resolution ; il a en vue notamment Ia 
resolution 186 (S-2) prise par l'Assemblee le 
14 mai 1948, oil il est question d'une fac;on 
nouvelle d'aborder Ja solution du probleme. 

II demande cgalement avec qui les Arabes 
sont censes entamer des negociations directes, 
et a quel sujet; en efiet, ils refusent de reconnaitre 
le parti et I'Etat sionistes et ils s'opposent au 
partage de la Palestine. Les Etats arabes sont 
toujours prets a negocier avec !'Organisation des 
Nations Unies au sujet du maintien de Ia paix; 
c'est Ia leur devoir. Mais ce sont la les seules 
negociations auxquelles ils se preteront. II ne 
s'agit pas d'obstination, mais de conviction, il 
s'agit du principe meme sur lequel est fondee 
!'attitude des Arabes. 

Depuis le debut, la conduite du Conseil de 
securite a ete fondee sur le principe equitable 
suivant : les combats devaient cesser en Palestine, 
et aucune des deux parties ne devait pouvoir 
mcttre a profit la suspension des hostilites, ni 
obtenir des avantages en la violant. Or, le terri­
toire que lcs sionistes occupent depuis le 15 mai, 
ils s'cn sont cmpare en violant l'ordre de cesser 
le feu donne par le Conseil de securite; ce faisant, 
ils ont obtenu a la fois des avantages politiques 
et militaircs. Les sionistes savaient qu'ils pour­
raient mettre !'Organisation des Nations Unies. 
devant un fait accompli, et cela avec impunite 
La preuve en est, selon l'orateur, la resolution 
(S/1070) du Conseil de securite du 4 novembre 
1948: les sionistes l'ont acceptee dans une 
certaine mesure, mais ne peuvent pas prouver 
qu'ils s'y sont conformcs. Contrairement aux dires 
de certains, l'Egyptc n'accuse pas le Conseil de 
securite de partialite ; elle !'accuse - ce qui 
est bien plus grave - de ne pas remplir ses 
obligations conformement a la Charte, puisqu'il 
se soumet a la force. Si le Conseil n'est pas 
capable de venir a bout d'un probleme militaire 
de peu d'ampleur, tel que les combats de Palestine, 
quels sont les problemes auxquels il pourra 
faire face? Tant que le Conseil de securite ne 
pourra pas mettre fin aux combats de Palestine 
et assurer le respect de ses ordres, on ne peut 
esperer qu'une solution intervienne pour la 
question de Palestine, pas plus que pour aucune 
autre question. 

On a affirme que les Arabes ne devaient pas 
s'inquieter du danger que le sionisme presente 
pour la paix dans le Moyen-Orient; or, il ne s'agit 
pas seulement, comme on l'a pretendu, d'un ou 
de deux millions de Juifs se trouvant en Pales­
tine, mais des forces sionistes du monde entier, 
c'est-a-dire de nombreux millions de Juifs et de 
bien d'autres qui ont partie liee avec eux. M. Fawzi 
est surpris qu'on puisse pretendre que le sionisme 
ne constitue pas une menace, alors que des 
centaines de milliers d' Arabes ant ete systema­
tiquement spolies, chasses de leurs foyers et 
livres a la misere. Il reconnait avec gratitude que 
!'Organisation des Nations Unies s'efforce d'aider 
les refugies, mais l'on peut dire, sans faire pre~v,e 
d'ingratitude, que cette aide n'est pas consid~­
rable. Ces gens qui voient leurs enfants mounr 
et qui sont destines a souffrir encore dava~tage 
au cours de l'hiver prochain ont le droit de 
retourner dans leurs foyers ; il est souvent peni~le 
de recevoir des secours charitables. L'agresswn 
sioniste est dirigee non seulement contre les 



United Nations itself. Before anything else 
the Arabs must know what measures would 
be taken for the maintenance of law and order 
and whether the refugees were to be allowed 
not merely to return to Palestine, but to return 
to a Palestine they could consider their own 
country. 

RIAD BEY SOLH (Lebanon) stated the position 
of his delegation which was that of all the other 
Arab States whose representatives had spoken 
before him. 

The recent statement by Mr. Shertok had 
served the Arab cause well, for it had revealed 
the real imperialist character of Zionism. Even 
before the J ewish State was created on the 
basis of the November resolution, Zionist ambition 
coveted the whole of Palestine where the Jews 
amounted to only-third of the population, and 
the independent State of Transjordan where not 
a single Jew lived. Mr. Shertok had also laid 
claim to an outlet on the Gulf of Aqaba which 
was of considerable strategic importance since 
it would provide the Jews with access to the 
Indian Ocean. Thus, Mr. Shertok had betrayed 
the real character of Zionism which was a colo­
nizing undertaking, under the guise of a spiritual 
movement. For centuries nearly two million 
Jews had resided peacefully in the Arab countries, 
enjoying the protection of the authorities and 
the sympathy of the Arab peoples. Judaism 
had always been respected by the Arabs as a 
religious belief but the Arabs were categorically 
opp_osed to Zionism. 

The Lebanese representative rejected the 
Jewish claim to Western Galilee. He recalled 
that Mr. Shertok had endeavoured to justify 
J ewish aggression in that area in violation of the 
Security Council's truce by casting the respon­
sibility for the situation upon the Arabs. On 
the basis of that fallacious argument, he had 
then attempted to prove that Jewish possession 
of Western Galilee was essential to the security 
of the so-called State of Israel. That the 
fighting in Galilee was the result of J ewish 
violation of the truce had been shown in the 
report of the Acting Mediatior (S/1071) delivered 
to the Security Council on 6 November, in which 
it was stated that the crisis had arisen as a result 
of Arab attempts to prevent the Jews from 
reinforcing their positions and carrying out 
incursions into Lebanese territory. In the same 
r eport it was recorded that Israeli forces had 
indulged in systematic large-scale pillage in 
which they had used army trucks. Thus the 
J ewish representatives were endeavouring to 
base their claims to Western Galilee on a situation 
resulting from violation of the truce and large­
scale-pillage which had driven the Arab population 
from their homes. 

The Lebanese representative was glad to note 
that the representatives of France and Belgium 
had expressed concern for the Holy Places in 
Western Galilee which were very dear to Christian­
ity. Despite the Jewish representative's asser­
tion that the Holy Places had not suffered from 

peuples du Moyen Orient, mais contre !'Organi­
sation des Nations Unies elle-meme. Les Arabes 
veulent savoir, avant tout, queUes mesures seront 
prises pour maintenir la loi et l'ordre ; il faut qu'ils 
sachent si l'on permettra aux refugies non seule­
ment de revenir en Palestine, mais encore de 
revenir dans une Palestine qu'ils puissent consi­
derer comme leur pays. 

RIAD Bey SoLH (Liban) declare que sa dele­
gation partage l'attitude de tous les autres Etats· 
arabes dont les representants ont pris la parole 
avant lui. 

La declaration faite nkemment par M. Shertok 
a bien servi la cause arabe, en revelant le veri­
table caractere imperialiste du sionisme. Meme 
avant que l'Etat juif eut ete cree, a Ia suite de la 
resolution adoptee au mois de novembre, les 
sionistes convoitaient !'ensemble de la Palestine 
oil les Juifs ne forment qu'un tiers de la popu­
lation, ainsi que l'Etat independant de Trans­
jordanie ou il n'y a pas un seul Juif. M. Shertok 
a egalement revendique un debouche sur le golfe 
d' Akaba, qui presente une importance strate­
gique considerable puisqu'il permettrait aux Juifs 
l'acces a !'ocean Indien. De cette fa<;on, 
M. Shertok a divulgue le caractere veritable du 
sionisme, qui est une entreprise de colonisation 
qui voudrait se faire passer pour un mouvement 
a caractere spirituel. Pendant des siecles, pres 
de deux millions de Juifs ont habitt~ en paix Ies 
pays arabes, beneficiant de la protection des 
autorites et de la sympathie des peuples arabes. 
Les Arabes ont toujours respecte le juda'isme en 
tant que communaute religieuse, mais ils s'op­
posent categoriquement au sionisme. 

Le representant du Liban rejette les droits que· 
les Juifs revendiquent sur la Galilee occidentale. 
Il rappelle que M. Shertok s'est efforce de justifier 
l'agression juive dans cette region, agression 
commise en violation de la treve instituee par 
Ie Conseil de securite, en rejetant sur les Arabes 
Ia responsabilite de la situation. II a essaye de 
prouver, en se fondant sur cet argument fal-· 
lacieux, que la possession de Ia Galilee occidentale 
etait indispensable a Ia securite de ce que I' on 
appelle l'Etat d' Israel. Le rapport du Mediateur 
par interim (S/1071) Soumis au Conseil de seen­
rite Ie 6 novembre, montre que les combats qui 
se sont deroules en Galilee etaient dus au fait 
que les J uifs avaient vi ole la treve ; en effet, il 
ressort de ce rapport que la crise s'est produite 
a la suite d'une tentative faite par les Arabes pour 
empecher les Juifs de renforcer leurs positions 
et de faire des incursions en territoire libanais. 
Le meme rapport constate que les forces d' Israel 
se sont livrees au pillage sur une grande echelle en 
utilisant des camions militaires. Ainsi, les repre­
sentants juifs essaient de fonder leurs reven­
dications relatives a Ia Galilee occidentale sur une 
situation qui resulte de la violation de Ia treve 
et d'un pillage a grande echelle ; ce sont ces 
evenements qui ont force les Arabes a quitter 
leurs foyers. 

Riad Bey Sohl a la satisfaction de constater 
que les representants de la France et de la Bel­
gique s'inquietent du sort des Lieux saints de 
Galilee occidentale, qui sont si chers a la chre­
tiente. Contrairement a !'assertion du representant 
d'lsrael, les Lieux saints ont souffert de l'occu-



Zionist occupation, there was ample evidence 
to the contrary. Riad Bey Solh referred to a 
statement by the Papal Nuncio in Cairo denoun­
cing the Zionist action. He also referred to the 
t estimony of monks and nuns who had fled into 
Lebanon and to the report to a Belgian pilgrim 
who had recently returned from Nazareth. 
He welcomed the gesture of the city of Liege 
which was sending assistance to Nazar-eth. 

H.iad Bey Solh considered that the new position 
adopted by the United Kingdom was a return 
to the Balfour tradition of support to Zionist 
claims. He found it especially regrettable ; 
for the Arabs, who had been led to believe that 
the old era of colonization had given way to the 
new doctrine of national self-determination and 
international morality, had thought that the 
United Kingdom had rejected the November W47 
resolution because the United Kingdomu upheld 
the rights of peoples to determine their own way 
of life. But now Mr. McNeil had ignored the 
interest of the Palestinians and had suggested 
to the Jewish representative that the Jews 
should accept Western Galilee, the most fertile 
area of Palestine, in exchange for the Negeb. 
Riad Bey Solh supported the statement of 
the Pakistan representative who had stressed 
the importance of the Negeb to the whole of 
Islam. 

The delegation of Lebanon was also apprehen­
sive with regard to the proposals of the late 
l\lediator in respect of the frontiers of the Jewish 
State. If his proposals were accepted, the 
Jewish State would have an extensive frontier 
in common with Lebanon, the integrity of 
which would have to be guaranteed by the 
United Nations. Presumably, since the United 
Nations did not yet possess a military force, 
it would entrust the task to one or several 
:Member States. But Lebanon, which had fought 
since 1913 to attain its independence, would 
not relinquish any part of its sovereignty and 
would refuse to be bound by a treaty or inter­
national agreement which might create a privi­
leged position for any foreign Power. That 
was an added reason why Lebanon rejected 
partition. 

Riad Bey Solh wondered why the United 
States and the USSR had so consistently favoured 
partition, for their attitude did not seem to him 
to be dictated by considerations of law and 
justice. Perhaps it was because they supported 
Haganah which was commanded in part by 
former United States and British officers or the 
Stern group, whose members were largely recruited 
fron the International Brigade which had fought 
in Spain. 

The Lebanese delegation could not accept 
the view that the United Nations or any of its 
organs should recognize the State of Israel 
merely because it allegedly existed. If the 
United Nations were reduced to an office for the 
registration of faits accompli, it would be forsaking 
the basic principles of the Charter. It would 
be creating a precedent which would, in .the 
long run, result in the destruction of the Um~ed 
Nations. In fact it was not even a <<realist!~» 
policy for, as the late Mediator had stated lll 

pation sioniste ; de nombreux temoignages 
l'attestent. Riad Bey Johl rappelle d'autre part 
la declaration faite au Caire par Ie Nonce du 
Pape, qui denonce les actions des sionistes. Il se 
refere egalement au t emoignage de moines et de 
religieuses, refugiees au Liban, et au recit d'un 
pelerin beige recemment revenu de Nazareth. II 
salue le geste de la ville de Liege qui envoie des 
secours a cette cite. 

Riad Bey Sohl considere que la nouvelle position 
qu'a adoptee le Royaume-Uni marque un retour 
a la tradition de Balfour, consistant a soutenir les 
revendications sionistes. C'est Ia un fait particu­
lierement regrettable aux yeux des Arabes, qui 
ont pu croire que les methodes anciennes de la 
colonisation avaient fait place a la doctrine 
nouvelle de Ia morale internationale de la liberte 
des peuples a disposer d'eux-memes, et qui sont 
maintenant amenes a penser que, si le Royaume­
Uni a rej ete la resolution de novembre 1947, 
c'est parce qu'il soutenait le droit des peuples a 
decider eux-memes comment ils entendent vivre. 
M. McNeil ne s'est pas occupe des interets des 
habitants de la Palestine ; il a suggere au repre­
sentant des juifs que ces derniers pourraient 
accepter, en echange du Negeb, la Galilee occi­
dentale, qui est la region la plus fertile de Pales­
tine. lei, Riad Bey Soh! confirme la declaration 
du representant du Pakistan qui a souligne !'im­
portance que presente le Negeb pour tout l'Islam. 

La delegation du Liban eprouve aussi quelques 
apprehensions au sujet des propositions du feu 
Mediateur, concernant les frontieres de l'Etat 
juif. Si l'on acceptait ces propositions, l'Etat 
d'Israel aurait avec le Liban une frontiere com­
mune assez longue, dont l'integrite devrait etre 
garantie par !'Organisation des Nations Unies. 
Comme celle-ci n'a pas encore de force armee, on 
peut presumer qu'elle confierait cette tache a un 
ou plusieurs Etats Membres de !'Organisation. 
Mais le Liban, qui a combattu depuis 1913 pour 
obtenir son independance, ne va pas renoncer, 
si peu que ce soit, a sa souverainete et ref~sera 
de se lier par un traite ou un accord internatiOnal 
qui assurerait a une Puissance et:angere un_e 
position privilegiee. C'est la une ra1son supple­
mentaire pour Ie Liban de rejeter le plan de 
partage. . 

Riad Bey Sohl s'etonne que les Etats-Ums 
et l'URSS se prononcent avec tant de perse­
verance en faveur du partage: leur attitude ne lui 
semble pas dictee par des considerations de 
justice et de Iegalite. Peut-etre peut-on en chercher 
la cause dans l'appui qu'ils fournissent a Ia Haga­
nah dont I' encadrement est en partie assure par 
d'a~ciens officiers americains et britanniques, 
ou au groupe Stern, dont les membres. viennen~ 
en majeure partie de la Brigade internatwnale qm 
a combattu en Espagne. 

La delegation du Liban ne peu~ pas ac.cepter 
l'idee que !'Organisation des Natw.ns Un~es o.~ 
l'un de ses organes doive reconnaitre l :Etat d I.srael 
pour Ia seule raison que ~e ?er~ie~ s.em~Ie ex1s~er. 
Si !'Organisation se redmsmt m~s1 a n etre. qu un 
bureau d'enregistrement des faitS accomplis, elle 
renierait les principes fondame~taux ~e.la Charte. 
Et elle creerait un precedent qm aura1t a ~a ~o~gue 
pour effet de Ia ruiner elle-men:~· En re~ll~e, ce 
ne serait meme pas la une pohtique << realiste J>, 

car comme feu Ie Mediateur l'a dit dans son 
' 

758 

\ 



his report, the future of the Jewish State was 
extremely uncertain. The Arabs, by refusing 
all co-operation, would condemn it sooner or 
later to certain extinction. The Zionist effort was 
now largely financed by subsidies received from 
the United States and other countries and by 
the fruit of looting. But the Jews were realizing 
that they could not maintain a community 
under total mobilization. They were anxious 
for negotiations with the Arabs in order to avoid 
the inevitability of economic ruin. However, 
the Arabs could not be made to give their consent 
to any measure by force. Riad Bey Solh warned 
that if a Jewish State were finally created, 
there would follow a disastrous struggle between 
Arab and Jewish extremists. 

Mr. McNEIL (United Kingdom) explained that 
his delegation's draft resolution had been revised 
(A/C.l/394/Rcv. 2) in the light of the valuable 
facts brought forward in the course of the discus­
sion. Two main lines of criticism had been 
directed against the original draft resolution 
(A/C.l /394). It had been contended, first, that 
the draft resolution did not make sufficient 
provision for settlement by direct negotiations 
between the Arabs and the Jews, and second, 
that the discretion of the proposed conciliation 
commission had been unduly limited by the 
instruction that it should give effect to the 
recommendations contained in part I of the 
Mediator's report. 

In respect of the first criticism, Mr. McNeil 
said that his delegation would be very happy 
if the parties were able to reach an agreed final 
settlement on the basis of direct negotiations ; 
however, it did not think that there was any 
evidence to support such an optimistic attitude. 
No one who had listened to the sincere statements 
of the Arab and the Jewish representatives 
could hold any other view. The United Kingdom 
could not agree therefore that the Assembly 
should abandon its direct responsibility for 
future events in Palestine and rely primarily 
upon the possibility of agreement between the 
parties. Indeed, if direct negotiations were to 
take place, the Arabs would find themselves 
in a position of considerable inferiority as a 
result of the Jewish military successes. It was 
much more likely that the proposed negotiations 
would never begin. 

Mr. McNeil explained that the views which 
he had just outlined were primarily directed 
at the Australian draft resolution (A/C.l /396) 
which was based upon a proposal for direct 
negotiations. The Australian plan conferred 
upon the proposed conciliation commission a 
superficially impressive list of functions but, 
if the parties refused to negotiate, those functions 
could not be fulfilled. Even the boundary 
commission would be dependent upon some 
direct agreement between the Arabs and the 
Jews. Mr. McNeil found it difficult to conceive 
any substantial steps which a conciliation com­
mission might take toinduce the parties to 
negotiate if they were not so disposed. It was 
therefore difficult for him to agree that the 

rapport, I'avenir de l'Etat juif est extremement 
.incertain. En lui refusant toute cooperation, Ies 
Arabes le condamneraient, tot ou tard, a dispa­
raitre. Actuellement, !'effort sioniste est finance 
en grande partie par des subsides venus des 
Etats-Unis et d'autres pays, ainsi que par le fruit 
des pillages. Les Juifs se rendent compte cependant 
qu'ils ne peuvent pas maintenir longtemps une 
communaute sous un regime de mobilisation 
totale. Ils sont impatients de negocier avec les 
Arabes pour eviter la ruine economique, qui est 
inevitable. Mais les Arabes ne peuvent pas se 
laisser imposer un consentement par la force. 
Riad Bey Sohl met en garde la Commission contre 
les luttes desastreuses qui s'ensuivraient entre 
extremistes juifs et arabes si un .Etat juif etait cree 
definitivement. 

M. McNEIL (Royaume-Uni) precise que la 
delegation britannique a revu son projet de reso­
lution (A/C.l/394/Rev. 2) a la Iumiere des 
elements precieux d'information qu'ont fait appa~ 
raitre les debats. Au cours de ces derniers, le 
projet initial (AJC.l/394) a ete !'objet de critiques 
qui peuvent se ranger en deux categories. En 
premier lieu, on a allegue que ce pro jet ne prevoyait 
pas suffisamment la possibilite qu'un accord se 
conclue entre les Arabes et les Juifs par voie de 
negociations directes. D'autre part, on a dit que la 
liberte de mouvements de la commission de conci­
liation projetee s'y trouvait exagerement limitee 
par l'intruction qui lui etait donnee de suivre les 
recommandations contenues dans la premiere 
partie du rapport du Mediateur. 

En ce qui ccincerne la premiere critique, 
M. McNeil declare que sa delegation serait tres 
heureuse si les parties pouvaient arriver a un 
reglement permanent par voie de negociations 
directes ; mais elle ne pense pas qu'il y ait rien 
dans la situation qui autorise a tant d'optimisme. 
Aucun de ceux qui ont entendu les declarations 
sans detours des representants arabes et juifs, 
ne peut etre d'un autre avis qu'elle a ce sujet. 
En consequence, le Royaume-Uni ne peut pas 
accepter que l'Assemblee se derobe aux respon­
sabilites qui lui incombent directement au sujet 
des evenements futurs de Palestine, et qu'elle 
mette toute sa confiance dans la possibilite d'un 
accord entre les parties. En realite, si des nego­
ciations directes devaient s'engager, les Arabes 
se trouveraient en etat de notable inferiorite a 
la suite des succes militaires que les Juifs sont 
remportes. Il est tres peu vraisemblable que les 
negociations qu'on propose aient jamais lieu. 

M. McNeil precise que les considerations qu'il 
vient de presenter brievement visent surtout le 
projet de resolution australien (AJC.l/396) qui 
com porte essentiellement une proposition de nego­
ciations directes. Ce projet confere a la commis­
sion de conciliation projetee un nombre de 
fonctions qui peut sembler impressionnant. Mais, 
la commission n'en remplira jamais une seule si 
les parties refusent de negocier. La commission 
des frontieres elle-meme dependra, pour son 
activite, d'un accord direct entre les Arabes et les 
Juifs. On ne peut guere concevoir, dit M. McNeil, 
les mesures utiles que pourrait prendre la commis­
sion de conciliation pour pousser les deux 
parties a negocier, si ces dernieres n'y sont ya~ 
disposees. Aussi peut-il difflcilement consentir a 

759 



First Committee should pass its own responsi­
bilities on to a commission which would almost 
certainly have to sit idly in Lake Success or 
Palestine watching a situation develop over 
which it could exert no formative influence 

In sub-paragraph 3 of the operative paragraph 
of the Australian draft resolution an attempt 
was made to meet the possibility of the Com­
mi~sion's failure by inclusion of a provision 
that it should report to the next regular session 
of the Assembly " with a view to final deter­
mination by the Assembly of the question ". 
But what might not happen in the interval 
before the Assembly next met? Furthermore, 
if the Australian delegation thought that all the 
Assembly could do was to appoint powerless 
commissions, then there did not seem to be 
much point in suggesting that it might reconsider 
the question in 1919. If, on the contrary, it 
was thought that the Assembly could take more 
positive action, there seemed to he no reason 
why it ~hould not take efTective action now. 
The United Kingdom delegation had studied 
the Australian draft resolution \Vith great care 
and was convinced of its good intentions, however, 
it did not lwlieve that it provided a practical 
solution for the problem. 

The second criticism directed against the 
original United Kingdom draft resolution had 
been that the proposed t erms of reference would 
restrict the conciliation commission's freedom 
of action. It had been argued that the Com­
mission should have the right to depart from the 
frontier proposals of the Mediator's report 
if it found that agreement between the parties 
could more easily be obtained by some modifi­
cation of those proposals. The United Kingdom 
delegation regarded that as an important and 
valid criticism and for that reason had sought 
to increase the proposed commission's discre­
tionary powers by incorporating some of the 
language of the United States amendment 
to paragraphs 3, 4 and 5 of the original draft 
resolution. 

It had not, however, incorporated all the 
language of the United States amendment. 
In particular, the United Kingdom delegation 
had been unable to accept in its entirety the 
text which had been proposed to replace para­
graph 4, because it considered that the Assembly 
would be putting too heavy a burden on the 
commission if it failed to give it very clear 
general objectives. Mr. McNeil had felt it 
essential to introduce suitable language to make 
clear the three following principles : first, any 
settlement should reflect the General Assembly's 
consistency of purpose and should give effect 
to the <>eneral intentions of the November 1947 

b 0 

resolution ; second, in the absence of econom1c 
union, it was important to carry out the Mediat~r's 
recommendation that both the Arab and Jew1sh 
territories should be geographically self-contained; 
third, full weight should be given to the Mediator's 
conclusions concerning the most equitable means 
of giving efTect to those general principles. 

The necessity for including such a precise 
statement of purpose was, Mr. McNeil explained, 
clearly shown by the statements of the Israel 

ce que la Premiere Commission se decharge de 
ses responsabilites sur une commission qui 
presque certainement sera condamnee a demeurer 
inactive a Lake Success ou en Palestine, et a 
assister simplement a !'evolution d'une situation 
sur laquelle elle sera sans action. 

Au paragraphe 3 du dispositif du projet aus­
tralien, on a essaye de prevenir la possibilite d'un 
echec de la Commission, en stipulant qu'elle 
ferait rapport a la prochaine session ordinaire 
de l'Assemblee « afin que cette derniere decide en 
dernier ressort de cette question ». Mais qu'est-ce 
qui ne peut pas se passer avant la prochaine 
session de l' Assemblee ? En outre, si Ia delegation 
de l'Australie a estime que tout ce que pouvait 
faire l' AssemblCe etait d'instituer des commissions 
inoperantes, il semble qu'il ne servirait pas a 
grand'chose de suggerer que l' Assemblee pourrait 
examiner a nouveau la question en 1949. Si, au 
contra ire, on pense que l' Assemblee a des mesures 
plus efficaces a prendre, on ne voit pas pourquoi 
elle ne le ferait pas des maintenant. La delegation 
du Royaume-Uni a mfi.rement etudie le projet de 
resolution de l' Australie; elle est con vain cue de 
ses bonnes intentions, mais ne pense pas qu'il 
apporte la solution pratique du probleme. 

La deuxieme critique qui a ete adressee au 
projet de resolution du Royaume-Uni, sous sa 
forme initiale, est que les dispositions du mandat 
qui y est propose restreindraient la liberte d'action 
de la commission de conciliation. On a soutenu 
que la commission devrait a voir le droit des'ecarter 
des propositions du rapport du Mectiateur rela­
tives aux frontieres, au cas ou l'on estimerait 
qu'une modification de ces propositions faci­
literait l'accord des deux parties. La delegation 
du Royaume-Uni considere que c'est la unecritique 
importante et justifiee et c'est pourquoi _ elle 
a cherche a etendre les pouvoirs discretionnaires 
de la commission en introduisant dans son projet 
une partie du textc de l'amendement des E.tats­
Unis, visant en particulier les paragraphes 3, 4 
et 5 du projet initial. 

On n'a pas, cependant, repris tous les termes 
de l'amcndement des Etats-Unis. En particulier, 
la delegation du Royaume-Uni n'a pu reprendre 
tout le texte propose en remplacement du para­
graphe 4, parce qu'elle pense que ce serait, de la 
part de l'Assemblee, charger d'un fardeau trop 
lourd la commission que de ne pas lui fixer des 
buts generaux bien determines. M. McNeil_ a 
senti la necessite de recourir a des termes b1en 
choisis pour faire ressortir clairement les trois 
principes suivants : premierement, tout reglement 
devra affirmer la fermete des intentions de l'As­
semblee generale, et donner effet a la resolution 
de novembre 1947 dans ses dispositions generales; 
deuxiemement, s'il n'y a pas union economique, 
il importe de suivre la recommandation du 
Mediateur, selon laquelle le territoire arabe et le 
territoire juif doivent l'un et l'autre former un 
tout geographique; troisiemement,_ il faut do?~er 
toute leur importance aux concluswns du Medm­
teur concernant les moyens d'appliquer le plus 
equitablement ces principes generaux. ' --

Lcs declarations que le representant d Israel_ a 
faites a une precCdente seance, dit M. McNeil, 
ont bien .montre la necessite de preciser, dans le 

760 



representative at a previous meeting. Mr. McNeil 
had formerly misconstrued the position of Israel 
in respect of territorial allocation. From Mr. 
Eban's recent statement it now appeared that, 
while asserting its juridical right to the territory 
allocated to it by the November 1947 resolution, 
the Government of Israel regarded the remaining 
Arab areas as being still " a matter of international 
concern awaiting final disposition ". Mr. Eban 
apparently considered that because no Arab 
State had been created, there should be a second 
international division to decide the future of 
those territories. Mr. McNeil hoped that the 
Government of Israel would not take the strange 
view that the Arab territory of Palestine was a 
cake to the slices of which it had equal title with the 
adjacent Arab States. Mr. McNeil thought the 
Government of Israel should be asked not to take 
advantage of the supremacy which its present 
position afforded it, and which history would 
doubtless show arose primarily from the unwork­
ability of the November 1947 resolution. He 
was sure that the Committee would wish to reaffirm 
the will of the United Nations that the territorial 
settlement in Palestine should be equitable and 
should take into account not only the future well­
being of the Arab and Jewish peoples but also the 
repercussions which a continuation of the conflict 
would have throughout the Middle East and 
perhaps in even a wider area. 

Mr. McNeil believed that the Committee would 
find the language of the new paragraph 4 both 
clear enough to sustain the conciliation commis­
sion's authority and flexible enough to give it 
the necessary discretion in the exercise of its 
functions. In view of the long history of unsuc­
cessful attempts to find a solution to the Palestine 
problem, it would be naive to create yet another 
commission with no more precise directives and 
no more defined authority than to seek to create 
a will to negotiate. While he still thought 
that the emphasis should be placed on the 
Mediator's 'report, although not necessarily 
exclusively upon it, he urged the importance of 
issuing a fair and practical directive to the 
conciliation commission. Failure to do so would 
be to condemn it in advance to failure. 

In paragraph 2 of the revised draft resolution 
no important changes had been introduced 
because Mr. McNeil felt that it was consistent 
with the two new paragraphs which followed. 
The purpose of paragraph 2 was to request 
the Assembly to endorse the Mediator's conclusions 
not in detail but simply as a basis for a peaceful 
settlement. The paragraph had, however, been 
amended in order to emphasize the United 
Kingdom view that the Mediator's recommen­
dations were a logical interpretation of the 
Assembly's will as expressed in the November 
resolution. 

In paragraph 6 of the revised draft resolution 
a change had been made to stress the importance 
of guarantees for the Holy Places outside the 
Jerusalem area. The suggestion now was that 
the conciliation commission should be empowered 

761 

projet de resolution, les intentions de la Commis­
sion. M. McNeil avait auparavant mal compris 
la position d'Israel a l'egard des attributions de 
territoire. La recente declaration de M. Eban 
fait bien apparaitre que, tout en faisant valoir ses 
droits juridiques sur le territoire qui lui a ete 
attribue par Ia resolution de novembre 1947, le 
Gouvernement d'Israel considere que les autres 
regions arabes constituent encore « un sujet 
d'interet international en suspens, en attendant 
I' attribution definitive >>. M. Eban, manifestement, 
estime que, comme il n'a ete cree aucun Etat 
arabe, il doit y a voir, sur le plan international, une 
seconde repartition pour decider de l'avenir de 
ces territoires. M. McNeil espere que le Gouver­
nement d'Israel ne va pas faire sienne cette 
etrange conception que le territoire arabe de 
Palestine est un gateau, au partage duquel il 
aurait droit au meme titre que les Etats arabes 
adjacents. Il faut, dit-il, demander au Gouver­
nement d'Israel de ne pas profiter des avantages 
que lui donne sa situation actuelle, avantages qui 
resultent - l'histoire le prouvera sans aucun 
doute - du caractere inapplicable de la resolution 
de novembre 1947. Il a la certitude que la Com­
mission tiendra a affirmer a nouveau la volonte 
de !'Organisation des Nations Unies d'arriver a 
un reglement territorial equitable en Palestine, 
reglement qui tienne compte, non seulement du 
bien-etre futur des peuples arabe et juif, mais 
aussi des repercussions qu'aurait ·dans tout le 
Moyen Orient, et peut-etre meme dans une zone 
plus large, la persistance du conflit. 

M. McNeil pense que la Commission trouvera 
le texte du nouveau paragraphe 4 a la fois assez 
precis pour renforcer l'autorite de la commission 
de conciliation, et assez souple pour lui laisser 
toute la latitude dont elle a besoin dans l'exercice 
de ses fonctions. Apres la longue suite d'essais 
infructueux pour trouver une solution ala question 
palestinienne, il sera it naif de creer main tenant une 
autre commission qui n'aurait pas d'instructions 
plus claires ni de mandat plus precis que de 
chercher a faire naitre la volonte de negocier. 
Si M. McNeil continue de croire qu'il faut insister 
surtout sur le rapport du Mediateur - encore 
qu' on ne doive pas necessairement insister uni­
quement sur lui- il tient a sonligner !'importance 
qu'il y a a donner a la commission de conciliation 
des instructions pratiques et justes. Ne pas le 
faire serait la condamner d'avance a l'echec. 

Aucun changement important n'a ete apporte 
au paragraphe 2 du pro jet revise de resolution; 
M. McNeil estime en effet, qu'il y a suite logique 
entre ce paragraphe et les deux paragraphes 
nouveaux qui suivent. Le paragraphe 2 a pour objet 
d'inviter 1' Assemblee a accepter les conclusions 
du Mediateur, non pas dans leur detail, mais 
simplement comme base d'un reglement pacifique. 
II a cependant ete modifie pour faire ressortir 
cette idee, enoncee par la delegation britannique, 
que les recommandations du Mediateur etaient 
!'interpretation logique de la volonte de l'As­
semblee, telle qu'elle a trouve son expression 
dans la resolution de novembre 1947. 

Au paragraphe 6 du projet revise de resolution 
une modification a ete apportee pour souligner 
!'importance de pourvoir a la garantie des sites 
et edifices religieux situes en dehors de la region 
de Jerusalem. Ce qu'on suggere maintenant c'est 



to call upon the political authorities concerned 
to give appropriate guarantees for the protection 
of and free access to all Holy Places. In para­
graph 7 a new clause had been introduced 
inviting the Security Council to take further steps 
to ensure demilitarization of Jerusalem without 
delay. That previous eiTorts had met with little 
success had been largely the result of the tension 
resulting from the truce. It was obvious that 
demilitarization of Jerusalem was an essential 
step in establishing an international regime 
and it was to be hoped that the signing of an 
armistice would create a more auspiciOus 
atmosphere for solving the problem. 

Mr. McNeil thought it might well be found 
desirable for the conciliation commission to 
establish its headquarters in Jerusalem since 
one of its major tasks would be the establishment 
of the international regime. 

He did not think that the Committee would 
approve the suggestion· which Mr. Eb?-n had 
made that the Jewish New City outside the walls 
of the Holy City of Jerusalem should be incor­
porated in the State of Israel. The disadvantages 
of such a measure were : first, it would make 
possible the construction of modern buildings 
in the immediate vicinity of the Old City and 
thus remove its distinction ; secondly by the fact 
that any international administration limited 
to the Old City would be completely dominated 
by its immediate neighbour because the civic 
services of J erusalem such as water supply and 
drainage had been planned for the city as a whole ; 
thirdly, and the most serious consideration, the 
existence of an isolated part of the State of 
Israel entirely surrounded by Arab or international 
t erritory would probably be a source of constant 
friction and a threat to the tranquility and 
perhaps the security of Jerusalem. The United 
Kingdom Government attached the greatest 
importance to a strong declaration by the Assemby 
that the whole of the Jerusalem area should be 
established as international territory. 

Mr. McNeil did not propose to deal with the 
minor verbal changes in paragraphs 8 and 9 of 
the revised draft resolution, which he thought 
were self-explanatory. 

He opposed the United States amendment 
to paragraph 10 of the United Kingdom draft 
resolution because he considered that it would 
weaken that important paragraph which dealt 
with the question of Arab refugees. The members 
of the Committee who had heard earnest appeals 
on behalf of the refugees, in particular, that 
made by the representative of Pakistan, would 
surely agree that the Assembly should give the 
utmost authority possible to those whose task 
it would be to maintain the rights of the refugees 
and to secure for them some redress for the 
sufiering which they had borne as a result of the 
Palestine conflict. Mr. McNeil explained that 
an addition had been made at the end of the 
paragraph in order to avoid any ~ppearance 
of conflict between the recommendatwns of the 

que la commission de conciliation ait le pouvoir 
de demander aux autorites interessees de fournir 
des garanties suffisantes en ce qui concerne la 
protection de tous les Lieux Saints et le libre 
acces a ccs Lieux. Au paragraphe 7, une nouvelle 
clause a etc introduite, invitant le Consil de 
securite a prendre de nouvelles mesures pour 
assurer sans delai Ia demilitarisation de Jerusalem. 
Si les eiTorts qui ont ete faits precCdemment dans 
ce sens n'ont eu que peu de succes, cela resulte 
en grande partie de la tension provoquee par la 
treve. De toutc evidence la demilitarisation de 
Jerusalem est une mesure essentielle dans l'eta­
blissement d'un regime international et il faut 
espcrer que la signature d'un armistice creera 
une atmosphere plus favorable a la solution du 
probleme. 

M. McNeil pense qu'il pourrait etre desirable 
que la commission de conciliation installe son 
quartier general a Jerusalem meme, puisque l'une 
de ses principales taches sera l'etablissement du 
regime international. 

Il ne pense pas que la Commission voudra 
approuver la suggestion faite par M. Eban, selon 
laquelle Ia Ville nouvelle juive, situee en dehors 
des murs de la Ville sainte de Jerusalem devrait 
etre incorporee dans l'Etat d'lsrael ; cette mesure 
aurait plusieurs inconvenients ; d'abord, et cela 
est tres important, elle permettrait de batir des 
immeubles modernes dans le voisinage immediat 
de Ia Ville Vieille ce qui enleverait a celle-d son 
caractere, en second lieu, toute administration 
internationale limitee a la Ville Vieille serait sons 
la complete dependance de sa voisine immediate, 
etant donne que les services municipaux de 
Jerusalem, tels que l'approvisionnement en eau 
et le systeme d'egouts, ont ete etablis selon un 
plan qui comprend tout !'ensemble de la ville ; 
troisiemement - et c'est la le plus grave -
!'existence d'une partie isolee de l'Etat d'lsrael, 
au milieu d'un territoire arabe ou international 
qui l'cntourerait completement, donnerait lieu 
probablement a des frictions constantes, menac;ant 
Ia tranquilite, et peut-etre meme la securite d~ 
Jerusalem. Le Gouvernement du Royaume-Uru 
attache la plus haute importance a ce que l' As­
semblee declare energiquement que !'ensemble d_e 
la zone de Jerusalem doit etre constitue en tern­
toire international. 

M. McNeil ne s'arrete pas aux Iegeres modifi­
cations de style qui ont ete apportees aux para­
graphes 8 et 9 du projet revise de resolution, et 
qui, pense-t-il, s'expliquent d'elles-memes. 

II s'eleve contre l'amendement propose par les 
Etats-Unis au paragraphe 10 du projet de reso­
lution du Royaume-Uni; il estime, en effet, qu:un 
tel amendement affaiblirait ce paragraphe rm­
portant, qui traite de la question des ref?gies 
arabes. Les membres de la Commission, qui ont 
entendu depressants appels en faveur des ref~gies, 
en particulier celui du representant du Pakistan, 
s'accorderont certainement a reconnaltre que 
l'Assemblee doit donner le plus d'autorite possible 
a ceux qui ont pour tache de sauvegarder les 
droits des refugies et de leur assurer quelq':es 
compensations pour les pertes qu'ils o_nt. sn_bies 
du fait du conflit palestinien. M. McNeil mdique 
qu'une addition a ete faite a la fin du J"'a~agraphe 
pour parer a tout semblant de co~tradictiOn _en~re 
les recommandations de la Premiere CommiSSIOn 

762 



First Committee and those of the Third Com- I et celles de la Troisieme Commission sur le meme 
~ittee on the same s~bject. In that a~~ti?n, sujet. Dans ce passage ajoute, on propose de donner 
It was proposed to mstruct the conc1hat10n pour instructions a la commission de conciliation 
commission to co-operate with the Director of de cooperer avec le Directeur de !'Aide des Nations 
the United Nations Relief for Palestine Refugees. Unies aux refugies de Palestine. II espere que la 
He hop.ed th~t, after reflection, the United States delegation des Etats-Unis pourra, apres reflexion, 
delegatiOn m1ght be able to accept the amended accepter le paragraphe ainsi modifle. 
paragraph. 

Mr. McNeil said that he welcomed further 
discussion of the revised draft resolution and 
would be willing to accept additional amendments 
if it were possible to do so without altering the 
underlying principles of the United Kingdom 
position. 

In conclusion, he reminded the Committee 
of the little success which had attended the 
Assembly's efforts during the previous twelve 
months. In adopting the November resolution, 
the Assembly had been motivated by three main 
objectives : first, to avoid physical conflict in 
Palestine ; second, to afford a political expression 
to Zionism ; and third, to find homes and refuge 
for 100,000 Jewish refugees. However, in spite 
of everything, it had been found impossible 
to avoid war. The State of Israel, as it had been 
created, was not a political expression acceptable 
to many Governments, to the Arabs or even 
to some of the Zionist representatives themselves. 
In order to find homes for 100,000 Jewish refugees, 
about 500,000 innocent Arab civilians had been 
dispossessed. 

Mr. McNeil explained that his only purpose 
in dwelling upon past failures was to induce 
the Committee not to flinch from the complex 
task before it nor to seek escape from the burden 
of responsibility which lay upon every member. 
To adopt a more general resolution which took 
no account of past events would be to condemn 
the conciliation commission and the Assembly 
itself to certain failure. 

The meeting rose at 1 p.m. 

TWO HUNDRED 
AND THIRTEENTH MEETING 

Held at the Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
on Thursday, 25 November 1948, at 3 p.m. 

Chairman : Mr. A. CosTA nu RELS (Bolivia) 

82. Continuation of the discussion on 
the progress report of the United 
Nations Mediator on Palestine 
(A/648) 

Mr. HAIDAR (Transjordan) proposed to reply to 
certain Zionist allegations which might have given 
a wrong impression of the situation. He recalled 
that a few days ago the Zionist representative had 
declared that Jewish expansion was a fiction. He 
had thus tried to convince the Committee that the 
Arabs were using Jewish territorial ambitions in 
order to create fears which he declared to be 
unfounded. It should be remembered that many 
eminent Zionists had spoken of Jewish expansion 
from the Mediterranean to the Persian Gulf and 

M. McNeil ajoute qu'il serait heureux qu'une 
nouvelle discussion s'engageat au suj et du projet 
revise de resolution; il serait dispose a accepter 
des amendements supplementaires, s'il etait 
possible de le faire sans changer les principes sur 
lesquels se fonde la position du Royaume-Uni. 

II conclut en rappelant a la Commission que 
les efforts de l' Assemblee, au cours des douze mois 
precedents, n'ont eu que peu de succes. En adop­
tant sa resolution de novembre 1947, l'Assemblee 
avait trois buts principaux : premierement, eviter 
un conflit arme en Palestine ; deuxiemement, 
donner au sionisme une expression politique, et 
troisiemement, trouver pour 100.000 refugies 
juifs des foyers ou des abris. Cependant, il a ete 
impossible, malgre tout, d'eviter la guerre. L'Etat 
d'Israel, tel qu'il a ete cree, n'est pas une ex­
pre~sion politique qui soit acceptable pour nombre 
de Gouvernements, pour les Arabes, ni meme pour 
certains des representants sionistes eux-memes. 
Afin de trouver des foyers pour 100.000 refugies 
juifs, pres de 500.000 civils arabes innocents ont 
ete depossedes. 

M. McNeil explique que son seul but, en in­
sistant sur les echecs passes, est de convaincre la 
Commission qu' elle ne do it pas reculer devant la 
tache difficile qui s'offre a elle, ni chercher a se 
decharger de la responsabilite qui incombe a 
chacun de ses membres. Adopter une banale 
resolution generale, qui ne tiendrait pas compte 
des evenements passes, serait condamner la com­
mission de conciliation, et l'Assemblee generale 
elle-meme. a un echec certain. 

La seance est levee a 13 heures. 

DEUX-CENT-TREIZIEME SEANCE 

Tenue au Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
le jeudi 25 novembre 1948, a 15 heures 

President.· M. A. CosTA nu RELs (Bolivie) 

82. Suite de la discussion sur le rapport 
interimaire du Mediateur des N a­
tions Unies pour la Palestine (A/648) 

Mr. HAIDAR (Transjordanie) se propose de 
repliquer a certaines 'allegations sionistes qui ont 
pu donner une impression erronee de Ia situation. 
11 rappelle qu'il y a quelques jours, le repre­
sentant sioniste a declare que !'expansion juive 
etait une invention. De cette fac;on, ce dernier 
voulait convaincre la Commission que les Arabes 
faisaient etat des ambitions territoriales juives, 
de fac;on a faire naitre des apprehensions qu'il 
declare etre sans fondement. L'orateur fait 
remarquer a ce sujet que de nombreux sionistes 

763 




